

March 26, 2012

Pantex Renewable Energy Project
Solicitation Number:  DE-SOL-0003513
Questions received to the Draft Solicitation
Responses are provided below each question.

1. Is the owner going to provide a list of approved vendors for the turbine supply? 

Response: No

2. Is there going to be a “buy American clause” associated with this project? 

Response: Yes

3. In Exhibit J the foundation design is a Patrick and Henderson (CAN) design; must we use this type of foundation design in our proposal? 

Response: No 

Or are we able to utilize a spread footing design? 

Response: Yes

4. Will you provide further explanation on the escrow account?  Is the escrow released at the end of each year provided the guaranteed output is met or are the full funds held for 24 years? 

The escrow account will not be used to accrue annual guaranteed savings. 

After final inspection, acceptance, and commissioning of the wind turbine farm, including all associated electrical wind farm equipment by the Government, the Contractor shall establish an interest-bearing escrow account that may hold: (1) accumulated funds through verified savings  determined by the Government to be above and beyond the Contractor's guaranteed annual cost savings ("excess savings") during the performance period of the contract; (2) any Federal, state, or local tax credit, rebate, or incentive (e.g., RECs, carbon credits, etc.) that the Contractor qualifies for based on the Contractor's performance of the SOW requirements under the contract; and (3) an initial Government funded amount of  $ TBD.  

The Contractor shall maintain the Escrow Account for the benefit of the Government, after which only the Contracting Officer has the right to authorize the use and/or disbursement of the funds in the escrow account over the term of the contract to accomplish any or all of the following:

a.  Supplement the costs of operations and maintenance of the wind turbine system, transformer and distribution systems;

b.  Supplement the costs of any unscheduled or unforeseen repairs and/or replacement of wind farm turbine, transformer, and/or distribution parts and equipment;

c.  Accelerate the Contractor's Total Contractor Payment in accordance with Section J, Attachments 2 and 6, Schedule 1 (Guaranteed Annual Cost Savings & Annual Contractor Payments) and Schedule 5 (Annual Cancellation Ceiling Schedule);

d.  Other uses as deemed appropriate by the Contracting Officer.

The escrow account so established shall be in accordance with federal fiscal law and not alter the rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the Government as set forth under the terms and conditions of the contract.  The CO shall work with contractor to develop the Escrow account.  The CO shall establish methodologies for amounts to be budgeted, contributed, and maintained in the Escrow Account.

5. Is the interest made on the escrow account paid to General Contractor? 

Response:  The account is established for the benefit of the government. Any use of funds in the account including accrued interest is at the government’s discretion.

6. Confirm that we need production metering for both the total output AND at each WTG (Wind Turbine Generator?). 

Response: Correct, the Government wants to see production by unit and at the substation totalizing meter.  Metering at substation will be a utility-class meter, and at WTG’s can be provided by standard WTG manufacturer’s metering system and SCADA with data-basing.

7. Please describe in further detail what is meant by guaranteed annual energy.  It is difficult to predict the wind.  

Response:  The guaranteed annual energy cost savings are the levels of annual cost savings the contractor is willing to guarantee for the ESPC project. The proposed values for these savings appear in Schedule 1 column (b). 

The guaranteed annual cost savings must exceed the annual contractor payments (Schedule 1 (final), column (c)) in each year of the contract post-acceptance performance period. For the first interval (generally 12 months) after Government acceptance of construction, the contractor is paid as if the savings guarantee is being met. The annual energy audit establishes actual savings. If actual savings fall short of the guarantee, the contractor will pay back the shortfall over the next interval by accepting lower payments.
 The total verified annual savings for the performance year shall be based on the total net KWH produced during that period, recorded at the substation meter, multiplied by the contracted energy rate (this could be based on the tariff or stipulated by the government) for that period. The annual savings guarantee must be less than or equal to the total verified annual savings for the performance year.


8. Please confirm contractor is responsible for identifying and applying for all tax incentives.  

Response:  The contractor is responsible for identifying and applying for all applicable financial incentives. Keep in mind that after project acceptance ownership of the wind farm is transferred to the government and tax incentives may not be applicable.


9. Please confirm that emergency work that contractor would be responsible for mitigating only involves the work that contractor is installing.  How will the line of demarcation be decided where contractor’s scope begins and ends on a multi-use site?  

Response: The contractor will be responsible only for the equipment that they warranty and install for this project.

10. Does emergency work fall under acts of God and other extreme occurrences?

Response: Yes

11. The industry standard for working hours is six (6) days a week, ten (10) hours per day, potentially including Sundays.  Is it acceptable to base our proposal upon these conditions? 

Response: 

All work East of 2373 can assume a six (6) day work week Monday – Saturday work week with working hours determined by Contractor.

All work West of 2373 will follow requirements outlined in PWS, Section 1200, 1.2.  A request may be submitted to the Pantex Site Office Contracting Officer Representative for off-normal workday access.  

12. Please re-evaluate and/or confirm that WTGs will need to be available for 97 or 98% for production.  Also, is this per WTG or the aggregate total of WTGs combined? 

 Response: The ideal target for the system is 97% for the year, 98% in peak months, but minimum     acceptable level for the system is 95% (total of WTGs combined, along with the electrical system).

13.   If a WTG is operationally capable but if there is an issue with part of the system, is that WTG still considered available for production and will qualify for the 97 (or 98%) production requirement?  

Response: No the system has to be available for production, if the distribution lines fall down that distribute the generated power to the plant then the WTG is not available. 







14. Please elaborate the DOEs intention for the intrusion detection system as listed in the SOW.  Where is this specifically to be included?  

Response:  Per individual WTG. Section 13710 describes the locking mechanism for the tower access doors. Provide tower doors that will take the Best Cores allowing Pantex security to key the locks and control the keys.

15. Please confirm if concrete slab capping of buried 35kV conduit is required or not.  This is not standard industry practice. 

Response: Yes a concrete capped is required.   

16. Above ground junction boxes are called out.  Please confirm if underground splices are acceptable or if above grade splice boxes are required.  

Response: UG splices are not acceptable; above ground splice boxes are required.  

17. Please confirm if the laydown yard needs to be fenced or not.  

Response: Laydown yard should be fenced to control access.  If contractor utilizes an on Pantex site laydown yard they are already fenced.  If they are utilizing the actual WTG site, control of equipment and material is recommended to prevent theft or vandalization.   

18. Can a variance be granted for extreme weather for working ‘off-normal’ workdays?  

Response: 

Contractor may submit a request for a modification to contract terms for risks that realize such as extreme weather days.  The onus is on the Contractor to provide clear evidence supporting the basis of the request.


19. Please elaborate on what is required for providing occupational medicine. 

Response: Read Section 1500, 1.6 Contractor Occupational Medicine, describes the requirements that are in accordance with 10 CFR 851.

20. Are pre-employment physicals required?  If so, for all employees?  Are they limited to trades personnel? 

Response: Meet; Section 1500, 1.6 Contractor Occupational Medicine, and 1.10 PPE, J describes the requirements.   



21. Are we required to provide radiological PPE?  

Response: Yes, Contractor provided PPE should be appropriate for the job being performed. No radiological work is anticipated with this project.  

22. Are we required to provide radiological detection equipment? 

Response: Contractor provided PPE should be appropriate for the job being performed. No radiological work is anticipated with this project.

23. Please confirm that contractor is required to provide permanently mounted electric cigarette lighters.  Does the contractor have to supply a designated smoking area?  If not, is the above provision required? 

Response: See Section 1500, 1.34 Fire Safety, G. Smoking Areas for requirements for smoking while on plant site.

24. Are there any FAR requirements?  

Response:  No, but please see Section 1500, 1.34 Fire Safety.

25. Please elaborate on your WTG SCADA requirements.  

See Div 13 – Balance of Plant –WGS, Section 13710, Part 2-Products, Remote Control and Monitoring Work Stations for requirements.  SCADA system needs to be capable of standard turbine manufacturer’s remote monitoring and control functions, and database storage of all relevant parameters to track the system performance (i.e. hourly, daily, monthly, annual energy production, power production, availability, alarms, etc.).  System should have the communications ability for the turbine manufacturer and O&M provider to connect to the system to check information and operate the turbines and other components.  HMI systems should be included to communicate with substation relays, breakers, meter, and transformer monitoring for the new wind farm substation interconnect hardware.  Separate standard manufacturer HMI/SCADA packages may be integrated or operated at stand-alone, provided that the O&M provider can access all programs through the proposed remote connection.


26. Are federal background checks required?  Who covers the cost for badging? 

Response: Federal background checks are not required and there will be no cost associated with badging.  

27. Does are workers 

Response:????? Not sure what this means.



28. Are there any hiring requirements in regards to veterans, MWBE, etc?  

Response: The government will not tell the contractor who to hire; however, the government is interested in qualified people.


29. Who is responsible for GERT?   

Response: Section 1550, 1.8, A General Employee Radiological Training (GERT) describes the requirements.  B&W Pantex provides the training at no cost to the contractor.

30. What kind of personnel, vehicle and/or equipment inspections are required upon site access?  

Response: Refer to Div 1700, Section 1.4, Site Access which describes the requirements for site access to Pantex Property on West side of FM 2373  Inspections will not be required for work on East side of FM 2373.


31. Will the DOE provide MSDS materials for all materials that exist onsite?  

Response: No.

32. What kind of reseeding/revegetation requirements are there?  NEPA requires revegitation, will provide guidance. 

Response: The kind of reseeding/revegetation requirements are the native grasses required will be buffalograss or blue grama.  Section 1600, there will be limited revegetation needed – depending on design of pads and turnarounds for each turbine.  

33. The site laydown yard is stated to be limited in size.  What size is allowable? 

Response:  Laydown yards may or may not be available on site.

34. Will a variance allowing large trucks to make a delivery be granted to allow deliveries between 6am to 8am and 3pm to 5pm? 

Response: 
All work East of 2373 can assume a six (6) day work week Monday – Saturday work week with working hours determined by Contractor.  Large truck deliveries will have to be coordinated through the Pantex Site Office’s Contracting Officer Representative to avoid road congestion and safety risks.

All work West of 2373 will follow requirements outlined in PWS, Section 1200, 1.2.  A request may be submitted to the Pantex Site Office Contracting Officer Representative for off-normal workday access. 


35. Delivery drivers are required to be US Citizens.  Does that mean all employees onsite will have to be US Citizens?   

Response: Yes.

36. Will any retainage be held from the general contractor? 

        Response: No.

37. What, if any, spare parts are required? 

Response: Yes, in accordance with contract requirements.  See Division 13 – Balance of Plant, Section 13710, Material and Equipment:  Spare Parts.  


38. Does contractor have freedom of choice to interconnect into either the 34.5kV South substation or 115kV North substation?  Is there a preference? 

Response: We will be interconnected to the South Main Substation. 

39. How many years should be included for operations and maintenance?  Multiple years are referenced throughout the documents.  

Response: In accordance with the contract, see CLINS 0005 and 0006. 
 
40. How should escalation be handled for the O&M portion?  It is difficult to predict what the Davis Bacon wages will be years from now. 

Response: The Davis Bacon wages are not applicable under the O&M portion.

41. For emergency work, what is considered a ‘response?’  If personnel cannot gain access due to site access limitations within the specified time, how will that be handled?  Will personnel be required to be onsite at all times? 

Response: Emergency work response is something that requires a reply.  Personnel access will be handled on a case-by-case basis.  Personnel will not be required to be onsite at all times.  
42.  Are duct banks required?  Can 34.5kV cable be direct buried? 

Response: Yes duct banks are required on plant property (West of FM2373).  No cable can be direct buried.  East of FM2373 still requires concrete slab over top of power cables/conduit.

43. What depth is cable to be required? 

Response: Minimum of 48 inches.

44. What electrical system studies are available or will be completed? 

Response:   Studies are available in the website:  www.doeal.gov/panwf 

45. Is there any agreement with Xcel Energy regarding injecting this power into the grid?  If so, please provide.    

Response: We have filed as a Qualified Facility, which will require Xcel to purchase the excess power.  The filing with the Southwest Power Pool will still have to be filed.  

46. What drawings of the existing substations are available?  

Response: See Design drawings included in RFP, these are 70% designs that will need to be completed by contractor and approved by COR.  Any specific information may be requested from the COR.

47. Are there more detailed drawings of the site showing existing infrastructure available?

Response: There is no existing infrastructure on the site east of 2373. Any additional drawings required for the area West of 2373 will be provided upon a specific request to the COR.
48. INL drawing E-6 shows details of the South Substation.  Can we get a general arrangement drawing of the North substation showing details of the 12.47 kV switchgear breakers? 
Response:  The option to connect to the North Substation will be deleted from the final RPF.
49. At the North Substation, are there any spare 1200 Amp breakers in the 12.47 kV switchgear that could be used for connection to the wind collector circuit? 

Response:  The option to connect to the North Substation will be deleted from the final RPF.

50.  If there are no spare breakers, at the North Substation, is there room to add another breaker onto the end of the switchgear? 

Response: The option to connect to the North Substation will be deleted from the final RFP.
51. As set forth on page 17 of the Draft Performance Statement of Work .   “Wind turbine hub heights for this work scope are expected to be 80 meters and the rotor diameter will be between 77 and 101 meters, giving a maximum total turbine tip height (hub plus rotor radius) as shown in the project drawings. FAA tip height restrictions are tight in this area, so the turbine locations may be adjusted by Pantex leading up to final design and construction (contract adjustments would be made accordingly).”
Our interpretation is that this corresponds to a maximum tip elevation above ground of 130.5 meters (tower height plus largest radius of blades).  Considering the tight restrictions is it known if a tip elevation above ground of 135 to 136.5 meters would be acceptable or not to the FAA? 
Response: The FAA approval is (will be) for the 5 locations noted in the PWS and a tip height of 426ft. (130.M).
52. The US Congress again failed to extend the Production Tax Credit (PTC) for Wind Energy Facilities. This tax credit is currently equivalent to about $22 per MWh, and when other federal subsidies –such as accelerated depreciation ‐ are included, lowers the 20‐year levelized energy price for most wind projects by $37 per MWh. Our preliminary analysis suggests that without these incentives that we will not be able to deliver energy from the project that will beat Pantex’s current expectations for purchasing energy from Xcel. We estimate that without these incentives in place that Pantex would have to pay a $10‐15 premium for wind energy from what the facility is expecting to pay from Xcel.
In order to manage the uncertainty of , we suggest that the mechanisms be included in the request that allow for bidders to include pricing for both PTC and non‐PTC pricing, and to potentially delay project construction by one to two years to take advantage of a PTC renewal window that may develop.

Response: This project does not qualify for the PTC’s. Keep in mind that after project acceptance ownership of the wind farm is transferred to the government and tax incentives may not be applicable


53. Preliminary conversations with debt partners regarding this project, indicates that the current meteorological record is not adequate to support reasonable levels of debt financing. The current industry expectation is three years of on‐site 60m met data. SODAR units, 10‐m towers, and proximate historical records cannot substitute, in the eyes of the banks, for on‐site 60‐m data.
In order to allow for reduced debt rates, we would suggest contractual mechanisms that allow for the installation of 60‐m MET Towers for a period of time (perhaps as little as 6 months) that would allow for reductions in the price based on any savings provided by financial institutions.

Response:     The wind data located on the Wind Farm Acquisition site (http://www.doeal.gov/panwf) in the library folder contains data from the tower located on the NE part of the Plant site (near the intersection of FM2373 and Ranch Road 293) for 60M from 2005 to 2008 (4 files).  Also located in the library is data from the towers (one in the proposed field) and SODAR unit for 2009 to August 2011.  This has data for 60M as well.  This data for 10, 30, & 60M can also be found at Skyserve.net (user – pantex, password – ptex123) as well as data to date.  When you include the latest year’s data from the two newer 60m met towers and Sodar, and the four or more years historical from the original Pantex 60m weather tower, along with correlation to the airport data, there should be multiple years of data to satisfy an investment-grade analysis.  Also, the right met firms may be able to compare to the wind farm data to the North of Pantex.



54. Front‐loading energy payments from the Pantex Facility will translate into lower long‐term energy costs, due to lower discount rates for the US Government, as compared to private entities. Please clarify if Pantex would be interested in front‐loading energy payments, or other structures such as an initial lump sum payment, and the specific amounts and limits to such payment structures.
Please also describe payment structures desired by Pantex for the contract, such as flat verse escalating.

Response:  No initial lump sum payments are anticipated.  Annual Energy Savings shall be escalated per the guidance provided in the PWS.


55. Please clarify who will be responsible for compliance with the various federal statutes related to migratory birds, eagles, and endangered species. If compliance with these statutes is expected to be the responsibility of the Contractor, please provide any and all information related to environmental uses at the Project Area, Pantex Contacts responsible for environmental compliance, and any other information that may help us to assess the requirements for compliance with federal environmental regulations.
Response: The contractor is responsible for complying with all federal laws.  For more information see Environment Assessment on the website:  www.doeal.gov/panwf located in the library.  


56. Please provide any additional information about the Facility’s daily, seasonal, and annual load shape. Historical 8760 load date would be preferred. This data is necessary to understand the expected production allocation that would be sold under a PURPA off‐take structure.
Response: The web site lists Pantex Electrical Power usage, 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011, which gives 15 minute interval data of the net plant load.  Using these 4 years should give an accurate load profile by month at any given hour for the plant load shape.   

57. Larger 3MW class turbines may present opportunities for further cost savings at the project. Could you please clarify if different turbine models and arrays could be considered? Additionally, could you provide spatial information (preferably in GIS format) denoting the areas suitable for locating turbines at the facility and any additional constraints, such as known microwave paths or required fall set‐backs. 

Response: The FAA approval is for the 5 locations noted in the PWS and a tip height of 426ft. (130.M).  There are no other constraints with these 5 locations.  Other layouts and tip heights could be considered, but would have to be cleared by FAA and would add risk and potential delay to the project.  Minimum setbacks were considered in the proposed layouts shown in the preliminary design drawings and wind analysis documents.  Original proposed row locations and number of turbines per row are also in those documents.  Pantex can provide additional information on request.



58. Throughout the documentation provided, there are specific references to the contractor creating an escrow account that may include rebates, tax incentives and other funds that the contractor may have benefitted from. Most if not all of these potential funds should be factored into the Guaranteed Cost Savings offered to NNSA. Contractor would assume that these funds would be part of our final price model and not applied to future operations cost. If an escrow account is desired specifically for the purpose of future operations out of budget cost, we would include that in our budgetary numbers. Please comment. 

Response :  Any rebates or incentives that are applicable at time of award should be applied to reduce the first cost/initial investment. Rebates or incentives that manifest themselves during the performance period may be deposited in the escrow account.  No value of future budgeted funds for the escrow account is available at this time. 

59. Contractor suggests that DE-AM36-09G0 29041 be modified if possible, to reflect actual project characteristic for reporting purposes. 
Response: We will not be using DE-AM36-09GO29041.  This will be a new site-specific ESPC.

60. Contract section E003 address’s acceptance criteria for the facility, specifically post construction testing. As a point of clarification for future proposals, Contractor suggest adding a point of clarity for bidders on the actual criteria and more importantly who will develop those criteria i.e. WTG manufacturer, DOE or EPC design team. 

Response:  It is anticipated the EPC (in conjunction with the WTG manufacturer) would be in a better position to develop acceptance criteria to meet the requirements of E003.  Acceptance will be in the PWS.  


61. Contract section 0F005 establishes a Liquidated Damage schedule based on Estimated Savings. Contractor suggests that the LD Schedule utilize the Guaranteed Savings total offered by the contractor in the executed contract. 

Response:  Using LDs as noted in 0F005 provides a consistent amount for everyone to use during the bidding process.  

62. Contract section DOE-L-1013 states that alternate proposals will not be solicited. While this section is perfectly clear, Contractor would suggest that additional language that establishes a conduit for value engineering and other creative elements not specifically covered in the solicitation have a place in an otherwise compliant proposal. 

Response:  It is expected contractor would provide his best proposal within the contract requirements; however we encourage the use of Value Engineering.   







63.  For clarity, is the government funding the project or is contractor being required to fund the project? 

Response:  The contractor is required to fund the development and implementation of the project. The contractor will be repaid out of the annual guaranteed savings generated by the project over the project term.

64. To assist in providing us the opportunity to develop a working model of potential savings, can you provide current price/kwh that Pantex is paying and maybe elaborate on the net metering sale of power to Excel? 

Response: Net metering;  We currently have 4 meters from Xcel Energy that monitor the load at our Plant, the usage from all 4 meters are totalized into one net bill each month.  That totalized plant usage and pricing for 2007 to 2011 is on the web site.  Xcel energy applicable tariffs are there as well.  The applicable tariffs are IV 117; Purchase of non-firm energy from a QF, however to simplify that process for all bidders excess kWh above plant usage will be $.03/kWh.  The applicable tariff for analysis is IV 181; Transmission Standby Service, which will be the pricing that the plant will pay for Standby Service (115kV and above rate).  This will give a kW summer and winter demand rate as well as an energy charge for all kWh.  Tariff IV 69 has the fuel cost recovery factor when that will be applied when usage exceeds production on the kWh rate.  We would anticipate that as a minimum; that monthly analysis based on historic plant usage with 7.7% annual tariff cost increase will be analyzed. 

65. Within the Best Value approach, how is past experience weighed in terms of percentage? 

Response:  As detailed in section M-1002, the best value trade-off will occur between technical approach to Wind Turbine System Capability, Past Performance, Key Personnel, Corporate Experience, Construction Management Approach, and price.  In accordance with the RFP, the technical approach to Wind Turbine System Capability, Past Performance, Key Personnel, Corporate Experience, and Construction Management Approach are significantly more important than Price.  

66. Will DOE review or approve design and engineering? 

Response:  Yes, the final design will be reviewed and approval given by the COR.

67. Incentives currently used by developers for wind projects, i.e., ITC, PTC and such are in jeopardy of expiring December of 2012. Does DOE have other incentives to influence the per kwh cost or is the intended project to be built before the end of 2012? 

Response:  The wind farm is projected to be built in 2013.  

68. During a previous conversation, Contractor was under the impression that the FAA study had been completed. Please confirm. 

Response:  The FAA study will be completed before release of RFP.  

69. Will a performance bond be required? 

Response: Yes, See clause 52.228-12


70.  Are other locations being considered?

Response:  No.
 

71.  What type of badging requirements are expected for entry to the construction site?

Response: Section 1700, Security, 1.1 Identification Badges describes the requirements. Badges      are provided by Pantex.

72.  Should we assume the workforce should be restricted to U.S. citizens?

   Response:  Yes.
 
73.  What are the various sources of savings that can be included in the financials?

Response:  The contractor will be submitting schedules 1-5.  These are the only schedules the    government will be asking for that provides financial information. 

74.  What is the maximum allowable period of performance?

    Response:  According to Statue, an ESPC can go up to 25 years.

75.  The RFP is presented more in terms of a Design-Build than an ESPC.  Will the procurement follow 10 CFR 436 Subpart B?

Response:  The contract will be put together in Uniform Contract Format and will include some of the methods and procedures for ESPCs as found in 10 CFR 436 Subpart B.

76.  Is the location of the wind farm fixed in the area on the former Cochrell Range property in the buffer zone and outside of the Pantex Security fence?

  Response:  The location of the Wind Farm is outside the Pantex Security fence on Federal property.








77. Under OF005 FAR 52.211-12 is there a list of examples of what actions specifically constitute “failure to complete the work” by the Contractor? Additionally, will the determination of “failure to complete the work” and the subsequent payment of liquidated damages be determined in a forum predetermined by the Government? Or will the determination of liquidated damages be settled by a mediator or arbitrator? 

Response:   The Contractor will be giving the Government a Construction Management Plan which includes a schedule.  This schedule will be used by the Government to determine if the contractor has fulfilled the requirements of the contract.   If the schedule is not being met and the contractor cannot adequately document a delay, this would constitute a failure to complete the work


78.  In Section 52.223-5 is the definition of “Toxic chemical” limited exclusively to the list provided in 40 CFR 372.65? Are items not included in said list up for consideration as “toxic chemicals?”

Response; The list provided in 40 CFR 372.65 is very comprehensive and is the list that will be used.

79. Under Section 52.217-9 is there any circumstance where Contractor will have the option to extend the term of the contract?

Response:  In Accordance with FAR 17.108(g), the contracting officer shall in insert clause 52.217-      9, Option to Extend Term of the Contract when appropriate.  The Contractor will not exercise the option, but the Contracting Officer will give the contractor a preliminary notice of its intent to extend the contract by exercising the option.  


 

 



 




	

